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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
The Board of Directors
Escambia County Health Care Authority
Brewton, Alabama
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and fiduciary
activities of Escambia County Health Care Authority (Authority), as of and for the years ended
September 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Authority's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
Continued
1

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities and fiduciary activities of Escambia County
Health Care Authority as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, and the respective changes in its financial
position and where applicable, its cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Change in Accounting Principle
As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, Escambia County Health Care Authority adopted
new accounting guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 84,
Fiduciary Activities, as of October 1, 2020. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
Other Matter
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Schedule of
Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios and the Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions
on pages 58 through 61 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with the sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Management has omitted the Management’s Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements,
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part
of the financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this
missing information.

Continued
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 15,
2022, on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Albany, Georgia
August 15, 2022
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ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
BALANCE SHEETS
September 30, 2021 and 2020
__________
2021

2020

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, net of estimated
uncollectibles of $45,272,000 in 2021
and $53,857,000 in 2020
Other receivables
Estimated third-party payor settlements
Supplies
Current portion of notes receivable
Prepaid expenses
Tax revenue receivable

$ 8,892,233

$ 14,783,506

9,621,707
333,144
212,064
1,231,225
180,403
376,895
1,763,000

6,561,660
638,158
313,361
1,262,123
323,670
1,642,175

22,610,671

25,524,653

Noncurrent cash and investments:
Held by trustee for malpractice
Restricted by contributors for capital expenditures
Restricted by contributors for scholarships
Long-term investments

1,544,472
1,038,491
44,904
10,205,766

1,439,216
1,029,097
44,904
16,320,552

Total noncurrent cash and investments

12,833,633

18,833,769

4,488,382
25,536,773

2,106,559
24,611,921

30,025,155

26,718,480

241,199
404,794

280,595
416,449

645,993

697,044

66,115,452

71,773,946

971,088

1,135,784

$ 67,086,540

$ 72,909,730

Total current assets

Capital assets:
Non-depreciable
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Other assets:
Notes receivable, net of current portion
Other assets
Total other assets
Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

Continued
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ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
BALANCE SHEETS, Continued
September 30, 2021 and 2020
__________
2021

2020

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Other current liabilities
CARES Act unearned revenue

$

Total current liabilities
Other liabilities:
Long-term debt, excluding current maturities
Net pension liability
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:
Expendable
Unrestricted
Total net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and net position

672,267
2,066,234
3,124,352
1,535,277
400,000

$ 1,787,594
2,301,264
2,779,601
1,042,823
10,388,299

7,798,130

18,299,581

10,544,333
3,792,319

12,762,508
3,866,912

22,134,782

34,929,001

2,248,531

2,332,618

24,383,313

37,261,619

18,808,555

16,798,688

1,083,395
22,811,277

1,074,001
17,775,422

42,703,227

35,648,111

$ 67,086,540

$ 72,909,730

The accompanying notes are integral parts of these financial statements.
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ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020
__________
2021

2020

$ 50,309,600
2,645,702

$ 40,436,253
3,590,644

Total operating revenues

52,955,302

44,026,897

Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and other
Depreciation and amortization

29,797,645
5,610,830
8,492,293
16,226,854
2,745,214

23,230,839
4,669,298
9,664,226
14,271,561
2,661,317

Total operating expenses

62,872,836

54,497,241

( 9,917,534)

(10,470,344)

Operating revenues:
Net patient service revenue (net of provision for bad
debts of approximately $20,890,000 in 2021
and $24,942,000 in 2020)
Other revenue

Operating loss
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Ad valorem tax revenues
Interest expense
Investment income
Gain on sale of assets
Forgiveness of PPP loan
CARES Act funding
Noncapital grants and contributions

(

Total nonoperating revenues

1,642,175
167,482)
14,376
1,000
4,628,595
10,795,301
58,685

(

1,605,128
190,187)
92,811
8,047,749
1,176,526

16,972,650

10,732,027

Increase in net position

7,055,116

261,683

Net position, beginning of year

35,648,111

35,386,428

$ 42,703,227

$ 35,648,111

Net position, end of year

The accompanying notes are integral parts of these financial statements.
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ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020
__________

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from and on behalf of patients
Payments to suppliers and contractors
Payments to employees
Other receipts and payments, net
Net cash used by operating activities
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Ad valorem tax revenues
CARES Act funding
Noncapital grants and contributions
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt
Proceeds on sale of capital assets
Purchases of capital assets
Net cash used by capital and related
financing activities

2021

2020

$ 47,655,864
(24,344,137)
(35,459,453)
2,645,702

$ 39,576,146
(23,098,906)
(27,579,140)
3,590,644

( 9,502,024)

( 7,511,256)

1,642,175
807,002
58,685
-

1,605,128
18,436,048
1,176,526
4,628,595

2,507,862

25,846,297

6,404,712
( 5,267,119)
( 167,482)
1,000
( 5,894,389)

2,314,950
305,719)
190,187)
( 3,788,021)

(
(

( 4,923,278)

( 1,968,977)

(14,154,680)
6,082,190
55,907

(14,404,132)
18,836,894
128,292

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

( 8,016,583)

4,561,054

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(19,934,023)

20,927,118

31,589,854

10,662,736

$ 11,655,831

$ 31,589,854

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments
Sale of investments
Investment income

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Continued
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ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS, Continued
years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020
__________

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
to the balance sheets:
Cash and cash equivalents - current
Cash and cash equivalents - noncurrent
Total cash and cash equivalents
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
flows used by operating activities:
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net
cash flows used by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for notes receivable
Provision for bad debts
Changes in:
Patient accounts receivable
Estimated third-party payor settlements
Other receivables
Supplies
Prepaid expenses
Notes receivable
Deferred outflows of resources
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Other current liabilities
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows of resources
Net cash used by operating activities

2021

2020

$ 8,892,233
2,763,598

$ 14,783,506
16,806,348

$ 11,655,831

$ 31,589,854

$( 9,917,534)

$(10,470,344)

2,745,214
139,913
20,889,937

2,661,317
24,941,531

(23,949,984)
101,297
305,014
30,898
(
53,225)
( 280,920)
164,696
( 235,030)
344,751
492,454
(
74,593)
( 204,912)

(25,043,109)
( 751,897)
(
6,632)
( 371,610)
(
26,378)
( 167,135)
( 1,135,784)
443,139
1,069,256
791,730
81,482
473,178

$( 9,502,024)

$( 7,511,256)

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:


The Authority held investments at September 30, 2021 and 2020, with a fair value of
$12,788,730 and $18,788,865, respectively. During 2021 and 2020, the net change in fair
value of these investments was a decrease of $12,906 and an increase of $9,390,
respectively.



See Note 7 for additional information regarding forgiveness of the Authority’s Paycheck
Protection Program.



The Authority entered into a capital lease obligation for equipment in 2021 in the amount of
$157,500.

The accompanying notes are integral parts of these financial statements.
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ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
STATEMENTS OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - PENSION TRUST FUNDS
September 30, 2021 and 2020
__________
2021
Assets:
Investments, at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents
Mutual funds
Pooled funds
Debt securities

$

Total investments
Total assets
Net position restricted for pensions:
Total net position

979,223
12,450,859
1,373,277
3,102,298

$

328,659
12,033,594
4,671,111

17,905,657

17,033,364

$ 17,905,657

$ 17,033,364

$ 17,905,657

$ 17,033,364

The accompanying notes are integral parts of these financial statements.
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ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - PENSION TRUST FUNDS
years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020
__________
2021
Additions:
Additions to net position attributed to:
Investment income:
Net appreciation in fair value of investments
Interest and dividends
Investment expenses
Total investment income
Employer contributions
Total additions
Deductions:
Deductions from net position attributed to:
Participant distributions
Administrative expenses
Total deductions
Net increase
Net position restricted for pensions:
Beginning of year
End of year

$
(

795,011
754,324
55,638)

$
(

147,694
746,644
79,164)

1,493,697

815,174

633,239

608,357

2,126,936

1,423,531

( 1,201,772)
(
52,871)

( 1,144,964)
(
59,206)

( 1,254,643)

( 1,204,170)

872,293

219,361

17,033,364

16,814,003

$ 17,905,657

$ 17,033,364

The accompanying notes are integral parts of these financial statements.
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ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2021 and 2020
__________
1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Reporting Entity
Escambia County Health Care Authority (Authority) is a public, nonprofit corporation created to
operate, control and manage all matters concerning the healthcare functions in Escambia
County, Alabama. The Authority was originally created under Act No. 46 enacted at the 1949
Regular Session of the Legislature of Alabama (codified as Division One of Article Four of
Chapter 21 of Title 22 of the Code of Alabama 1975), incorporated as the Escambia County
Hospital Board under a Certificate of Incorporation filed in the office of the Judge of Probate of
Escambia County, Alabama, on April 4,1951, and reincorporated as the Escambia County
Health Care Authority pursuant to the provisions of Article 11 of Chapter 21 of Title 22 of the
Code of Alabama 1975, as amended, pursuant to a Certificate of Reincorporation approved
and filed in the office of the Judge of Probate of Escambia County, Alabama on March 9, 1983.
The Authority operates two hospitals and their related rural health clinics, D.W. McMillan EMS,
D. W. McMillan Home Health Equipment, and manages the ad valorem tax revenues received.
The Authority owns and operates D. W. McMillan Hospital (McMillan), a 49-bed acute care
hospital, providing inpatient, outpatient, emergency and rural health clinic services in Brewton,
Alabama and the surrounding areas. The members of the Authority’s board also serve as
members of McMillan’s Board of Directors; therefore, McMillan is presented as a blended
component unit of the Authority.
McMillan Hospital Health Care Foundation of Brewton (Foundation) is a not-for-profit 501(c)(3)
corporation organized exclusively to serve as an instrument to assist, advance and strengthen
McMillan in its ministry of healing and to promote broad-based support of McMillan. The
Authority elects or appoints the Board of Directors of the Foundation. Upon dissolution of the
Foundation, the remaining net assets revert to the Authority. Accordingly, the Foundation is
presented as a blended component unit of the Authority in the accompanying financial
statements.
The Authority is the sole corporate member of Escambia County Alabama Community
Hospitals, Inc., which is a not-for-profit 501(c)(3) organization doing business as Atmore
Community Hospital (Atmore). Atmore is a 49-bed acute care hospital providing inpatient,
outpatient, emergency and rural health clinic services in Atmore, Alabama and the surrounding
areas. The members of the Authority’s board also serve as members of Atmore’s Board of
Directors; therefore, Atmore is presented as a blended component unit of the Authority.
All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated.

Continued
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ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2021 and 2020
__________
1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued
Tax Status
The Authority and McMillan are organized under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code
and considered governmental entities and are exempt from income taxes. Accordingly, no
provision for income taxes has been considered in the accompanying financial statements.
The Foundation and Atmore are not-for-profit corporations that have been recognized as taxexempt pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. They are required to file a
Form 990 with the Internal Revenue Service. Any income earned from non-related business
services is subject to taxation.
The Foundation and Atmore apply accounting policies that prescribe when to recognize and
how to measure the financial statement effects of income tax positions taken or expected to be
taken on its income tax returns. These rules require management to evaluate the likelihood
that, upon examination by the relevant taxing jurisdictions, those income tax positions would be
sustained. Based on that evaluation, they only recognize the maximum benefit of
each income tax position that is more than 50% likely of being sustained. To the extent that all
or a portion of the benefits of an income tax position are not recognized, a liability would be
recognized for the unrecognized benefits, along with any interest and penalties that would
result from disallowance of the position. Should any such penalties and interest be incurred,
they would be recognized as operating expenses.
Based on the results of management’s evaluation, no liability is recognized in the
accompanying balance sheets for unrecognized income tax positions. Further, no interest or
penalties have been accrued or charged to expense as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, or
for the years then ended. The Foundation and Atmore’s tax returns are subject to possible
examination by the taxing authorities. For federal income tax purposes, the tax returns
essentially remain open for possible examination for a period of three years after the respective
filing deadlines of those returns.
Related Party and Organization
The Authority’s Board of Directors is composed of nine members appointed by the Escambia
County Commission (County Commission). The County Commission, however, is not
financially accountable (because it does not impose will or have a financial benefit or burden
relationship) for the Authority, and the Authority is not considered part of the County
Commission’s financial reporting entity. The Authority is considered a related organization of
the County Commission.

Continued
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ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2021 and 2020
__________
1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued
Fiduciary Fund
Following the Authority’s financial statements are separate financial statements for the fiduciary
fund. The Pension Trust Fund fiduciary funds are excluded from the Authority's financial
statements as these assets are held in a trust capacity for the benefit of employees of the
Authority who participate in Escambia County Health Care Authority Pension Trust and ACH
Pension Plan (Note 8) and cannot be used to support the Authority’s programs.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.
Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the determination of the
allowances for uncollectible accounts and contractual adjustments, estimated third-party payor
settlements, and self-insurance reserves. In particular, laws and regulations governing the
Medicare and Medicaid programs are extremely complex and subject to interpretation. As a
result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates associated with these
programs will change by a material amount in the near-term.
Enterprise Fund Accounting
The Authority uses enterprise fund accounting. Revenues and expenses are recognized on
the accrual basis using the economic resources measurement focus. The Authority prepares
its financial statements as a business-type activity in conformity with applicable
pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include investments in highly liquid debt instruments with an
original maturity of three months or less.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
The Authority provides an allowance for doubtful accounts based on an evaluation of the
overall collectability of the accounts receivable. As accounts are known to be uncollectible, the
accounts are charged against the allowance.

Continued
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ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2021 and 2020
__________
1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued
Supplies
Supplies are stated at the lower of cost or market value, using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method.
Noncurrent Cash and Investments
Noncurrent cash and investments include assets held by trustee for malpractice, assets
restricted by donor for scholarships and capital expenditures, and other long-term investments.
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities
Investments in debt and equity securities are reported at fair value. Interest, dividends, and
gains and losses, both realized and unrealized, on investments in debt and equity securities
are included in investment income when earned.
Capital Assets
Capital assets are reported at historical cost. Contributed capital assets are reported at their
acquisition value at the time of their donation. Depreciation is provided over the estimated
useful life of each depreciable asset and is computed on the straight-line method. The
estimated useful life is assigned using AHA Useful Lives Guidelines listed below. Equipment
under capital lease obligations is amortized on the straight-line method over the shorter period
of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the equipment.
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Equipment

5 to 30 Years
3 to 40 Years
3 to 25 Years

Notes Receivable
Notes receivable consist of income guarantee loans secured by promissory notes to physicians
under recruiting arrangements. In general, these loans will be forgiven over a period of time in
which the physician practices medicine in Escambia County, Alabama. If the physician
discontinues medical practice in this area, the outstanding principal and accrued interest
become due immediately. The amounts forgiven and charged to expense during 2021 and
2020, were approximately $140,000 and $-0-, respectively.
Costs of Borrowing
Interest cost incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction of capital assets is
capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring those assets. None of the Authority’s
interest cost was capitalized in 2021 or 2020.
Continued
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ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2021 and 2020
__________
1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued
Financing Cost
Costs incurred in connection with the issuance of bonds and notes are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.
Compensated Absences
The Authority’s eligible employees earn paid-time-off (PTO) at varying rates depending on
years of service. PTO can be used in minimum quarter-hour increments. In the event that
available PTO is not used by the end of the year, employees may carry unused time forward to
the next year. Employees may accumulate PTO up to 500 hours maximum. Upon termination
of employment, employees that have at least ninety days of service and have provided the
appropriate two-week notice will be paid for unused PTO. However, if the Authority, in its sole
discretion, terminates employment for cause, forfeiture of unused PTO may result. The
accumulated PTO is reported as a current liability in 2021 and 2020.
Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have
been satisfied. CARES Act advance payments are reported as unearned revenue until all
applicable eligibility requirements are met. See Note 15 for additional information.
Net Position
Net position of the Authority is classified in three components. Net investment in capital assets
consist of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the current balances
of any outstanding borrowings used to finance the purchase or construction of those assets.
Restricted net position is noncapital assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources related to those assets that must be used for a particular purpose, as specified by
creditors, grantors, or contributors external to the Authority, including amounts deposited with
trustees for malpractice. Unrestricted net position is the remaining net amount of assets,
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that do not meet
the definition of net investment in capital assets or the restricted net position.
Net Patient Service Revenue
Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients,
third-party payors, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive
adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered
and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined.

Continued
15

ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2021 and 2020
__________
1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued
Charity Care
The Authority provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy
without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Authority does not
pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as
revenue.
Operating Revenues and Expenses
The Authority’s statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position distinguish
between operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses. Operating revenues result from
exchange transactions associated with providing health care services - the Authority’s principal
activity. Nonexchange revenues, including taxes, grants and contributions received for
purposes other than capital asset acquisition, are reported as nonoperating revenues.
Operating expenses are all expenses incurred to provide health care services, other than
financing costs.
Grants and Contributions
Occasionally, the Authority receives grants from Escambia County, the State of Alabama, the
federal government, as well as contributions from individuals and private organizations.
Revenues from grants and contributions (including contributions of capital assets) are
recognized when all eligibility requirements, including time requirements are met. Grants and
contributions may be restricted for either specific operating purposes or for capital purposes.
Amounts that are unrestricted or that are restricted to a specific operating purpose are reported
as nonoperating revenues. Amounts restricted to capital acquisitions are reported after
nonoperating revenues and expenses. See Note 15 for additional information related to
CARES Act funding.
Restricted Resources
When the Authority has both restricted and unrestricted resources available to finance a
particular program, it is the Authority’s policy to use restricted resources before unrestricted
resources.

Continued
16

ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2021 and 2020
__________
1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
Deferred outflows and inflows of resources represent the consumption or acquisition,
respectively, of the Authority’s net position applicable to a future reporting period.
Deferred outflows of resources consist of the amounts related to the defined benefit pension
plans of approximately $971,000 and $1,136,000, respectively at September 30, 2021 and
2020. See Note 8 for additional information.
Deferred inflows of resources consist of amounts related to the defined benefit pension plans of
approximately $486,000 and $690,000, respectively and deferred ad valorem tax revenues of
approximately $1,763,000 and $1,642,000, respectively at September 30, 2021 and 2020. See
Note 8 for additional information related to the defined benefit pension plans.
The Authority receives the proceeds of certain ad valorem tax revenues. The proceeds of taxes
such as those received by the Authority (referred to as imposed nonexchange revenue
transactions) are recorded as deferred inflows of resources by the recipient when an
enforceable legal claim to the resources exists or the resources are received, whichever is
first, and as revenue by the recipient in the period for which taxes are levied.
The property taxes are levied by Escambia County on the Authority’s behalf in February of
each year and are intended to support the Authority’s activities. Amounts are levied on
assessed property values as of the preceding October 1st. Property taxes are due the following
October 1st and are considered delinquent after December 31st. The property taxes are
collected and used in the fiscal year following the levy and are, therefore, deferred at year end.
The Authority receives 4 mills.
Net Pension Liability
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pension items, and pension expense, information about
the fiduciary net position of the defined benefit plan and additions to or deductions from the
plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
the plan. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
Risk Management
The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; business interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses; natural
disasters; medical malpractice; dental, and accident benefits. Commercial insurance coverage
is purchased for claims arising from such matters. Settled claims have not exceeded
commercial coverage in any of the three preceding years. See Note 11 for additional
information related to the Authority’s professional coverage.
Continued
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued
Impairment of Long-lived Assets
The Authority evaluates on an ongoing basis the recoverability of its assets for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. The impairment loss to be recognized is the amount by which the carrying value
of the long-lived asset exceeds the asset’s fair value. In most instances, the fair value is
determined by discounted estimated future cash flows using an appropriate interest rate.
The Authority has not recorded any impairment charges in the accompanying statements of
revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the years ended September 30, 2021 and
2020.
Fair Value Measurements
GASB Statement No. 72 - Fair Value Measurement and Application defines fair value as the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is an exit price at
the measurement date from the perspective of a market participant that controls the asset or is
obligated for the liability. GASB No. 72 also establishes a hierarchy of inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. If a price for an identical asset or liability is not
observable, a government should measure fair value using another valuation technique that
maximizes the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable
inputs. GASB No. 72 describes the following three levels of inputs that may be used:


Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in
active markets that a government can access at the measurement date.
The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs.



Level 2: Observable inputs such as quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets
or liabilities in markets that are not active, or inputs other than quoted
prices that are observable for the asset or liability.



Level 3: Unobservable inputs for an asset or liability. The fair value
hierarchy gives the lowest priority to Level 3 inputs.

Continued
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities (GASB 84).
GASB 84 establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local
governments. An activity meeting the criteria should be reported in a fiduciary fund in the
financial statements. Governments with activities meeting the criteria should present a
statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. GASB
84 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018. However, the adoption of
GASB 84 was delayed one year by the issuance and adoption of GASB 95. The Authority
retroactively adopted this statement effective October 1, 2020, resulting in the presentation of
the Statements of Fiduciary Net Position - Pension Trust Funds and Statements of Changes in
Fiduciary Net Position - Pension Trust Funds in the accompanying financial statements. The
adoption had no impact to net position.
Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of individuals or units
outside of the Authority. The Authority is the trustee or fiduciary responsible for assets, which
can be used only for the trust beneficiaries per trust arrangements. The Authority is
responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended
purposes. All of the Authority’s fiduciary activities are reported in separate statements of
fiduciary net position and statements of changes in fiduciary net position. The accounting for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. Escambia County Health Care
Authority Pension Trust and ACH Pension Plan (Note 8) are reported under the fiduciary fund.
Since the resources of these funds are not available to support the Authority’s own programs,
the funds are not reflected in the Authority's financial statements. The statements of fiduciary
net position and the statements of changes in fiduciary net position can be found on pages 9
and 10, respectively, of this report.
Accounting Pronouncement Not Yet Adopted
In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases (GASB 87). GASB 87 establishes
standards of accounting and financial reporting by lessees and lessors. GASB 87 will require a
lessee to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset at the
commencement of the lease term, with certain exceptions, and will require a lessor to
recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources at the commencement of the
lease term, with certain exceptions. GASB 87 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June
15, 2021, with GASB 95 deferral. The Authority is currently evaluating the impact GASB 87 will
have on its financial statements.

Continued
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Net Patient Service Revenue
The Authority has arrangements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the
Authority at amounts different from its established rates. The Authority does not believe that
there are any significant credit risks associated with receivables due from third-party payors.
Revenue from the Medicare and Medicaid programs accounted for approximately 21% and 8%,
respectively, of the Authority’s gross patient service revenue for the year ended 2021 and
approximately 25% and 8%, respectively, of the Authority’s gross patient service revenue for
the year ended 2020. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs
are complex and subject to interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility
that recorded estimates will change by a material amount in the near-term.
The Authority believes that it is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and is not
aware of any pending or threatened investigations involving allegations of potential
wrongdoing. However, there has been an increase in regulatory initiatives at the state and
federal levels including the initiation of the Recovery Audit Contractor (RAC) program and the
Medicaid Integrity Contractor (MIC) program. These programs were created to review
Medicare and Medicaid claims for medical necessity and coding appropriateness. The RAC’s
have authority to pursue improper payments with a three-year look back from the date the
claim was paid. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future
government review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines,
penalties, and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs.
A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payors follows:


Medicare
For McMillan and Atmore, inpatient acute care services rendered to Medicare program
beneficiaries are paid at prospectively determined rates. These rates vary according to a
patient classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors.
Outpatient services rendered to Medicare beneficiaries are paid at prospectively
determined rates per encounter characterized as ambulatory payment classifications in
which payment is based on the type of patient service performed.
The Authority is reimbursed for certain reimbursable items at a tentative rate with final
settlement determined after submission of annual cost reports by the Authority and audits
thereof by the Medicare Administrative Contractor (MAC). The Authority’s classification of
patients under the Medicare program and the appropriateness of their admission are
subject to an independent review by a peer review organization under contract with the
Authority. All Medicare cost reports have been audited by the MAC through September
30, 2014.

Continued
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Net Patient Service Revenue, Continued


Medicaid
The Hospital Funding Program governs Medicaid payments. For public hospitals, the
Hospital Funding Program utilizes federal funds derived from disproportionate share
hospital (DSH) payments to provide inpatient and outpatient payments.
Hospitals receive quarterly DSH payments during the state fiscal year, base per diem
payments for inpatient services, and outpatient payments based on the Medicaid fee
schedule maintained by the Medicaid agency. These payments are determined and
provided by the Alabama Medicaid Agency. The Alabama Medicaid Agency claims the
maximum allowable DSH amount from the federal government and distributes these funds
to hospitals based on a hospital’s share of statewide uncompensated care.
DSH transactions are considered interim payments by the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services (CMS), the federal agency responsible for managing states’ Medicaid
programs. The Alabama Medicaid Agency is required to conduct reconciliations of DSH
payments to hospitals with actual cost incurred by the hospitals. The reconciliation
process for SFY 2018 was in progress at year-end. Based on these reconciliations, the
State of Alabama through the Medicaid Agency is responsible for any excess funds
claimed above allowed amounts or unclaimed funds below allowed amounts from CMS. If
the reconciliation shows the cost incurred for all public hospitals is more than the total
DSH payments received, no individual hospital adjustment will be made; however, if the
cost incurred for all public hospitals is less than the total DSH payments received, each
individual hospital will be required to reimburse its pro rata share of payments received for
the difference noted. During 2021, there were no audit findings requiring reimbursement
from public hospitals.



Blue Cross
Inpatient services rendered to Blue Cross subscribers are paid at prospectively determined
rates per day of hospitalization. Outpatient services are paid on an enhanced ambulatory
patient grouping (EAPG) methodology. Under this methodology, the Authority is
reimbursed at prospectively determined rates per service.



Other Agreements
The Authority has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial
insurance carriers, health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider
organizations. The basis for payment to the Authority under these agreements includes
prospectively determined rates per discharge, discounts from established charges, and
prospectively determined daily rates.

Continued
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Net Patient Service Revenue, Continued


Uninsured Patients
Atmore, being a not-for-profit 501(c)(3) organization, maintains its Financial Assistance
Policy (FAP) in accordance with Internal Revenue Code §501(r). Based on the FAP,
following a determination of financial assistance eligibility, patients who are eligible
individuals will not be charged more for emergency or other medically necessary care than
the Amounts Generally Billed (AGB) for individuals who have Medicare coverage. AGB is
calculated by dividing Medicare gross reimbursement (including patient deductibles and
coinsurance) by the total allowable gross charges for those claims during a 12-month lookback period.

3.

Uncompensated Services
The amount of charges forgone for services and supplies furnished under the Authority’s
charity care policy aggregated approximately $335,000 and $69,000 in 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

4.

Deposits and Investments
As discussed in Note 1, the Authority’s investments are generally carried at fair value.
Deposits and investments as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, are classified in the
accompanying financial statements as follows:
2021
Balance sheets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Noncurrent cash and investments:
Held by trustee for malpractice
Restricted by contributors for capital
expenditures
Restricted by contributors for scholarships
Long-term investments
Total
Deposits and investments consist of the following:
Deposits
Money market mutual funds
Debt securities
Marketable equity securities
Total

Continued
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2020

$ 8,892,233

$ 14,783,506

1,544,472

1,439,216

1,038,491
44,904
10,205,766

1,029,097
44,904
16,320,552

$ 21,725,866

$ 33,617,275

$ 8,937,137
2,718,694
9,977,702
92,333

$ 14,828,410
16,761,444
1,935,088
92,333

$ 21,725,866

$ 33,617,275
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Deposits and Investments, Continued
Disclosures Relating to Custodial Credit Risk
At September 30, 2021 and 2020, the Authority’s deposits were held by financial institutions in
the State of Alabama’s Security of Alabama Funds Enhancement (SAFE) Program. The SAFE
Program was established by the Alabama Legislature and is governed by the provisions
contained in the Code of Alabama 1975, Sections 41-14A-1 through 41-14A-14. Under the
SAFE Program, all public funds are protected through a collateral pool administered by the
Alabama State Treasurer’s Office. Under this program, financial institutions holding deposits of
public funds must pledge securities as collateral against those deposits. In the event of failure
of a financial institution, securities pledged by the financial institution would be liquidated by the
State Treasurer to replace the public deposits not covered by the Federal Depository Insurance
Corporation (FDIC). If the securities pledged failed to produce adequate funds, every
institution participating in the pool would share the liability for the remaining balance.
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk
The Authority manages its exposure to declines in fair values from rising interest rates by
investing in debt securities with short to intermediate maturities. The weighted average
maturity presented below is calculated based on the maturity date of the security.
As of September 30, 2021 and 2020, the Authority had the following investments in debt
securities and weighted average maturities:
2021

Debt securities:
Municipal bonds
Agency bonds
Certificates of deposit
Corporate bonds
Total debt securities

2020

Amount

Weighted
Average
Maturity
(In Years)

Amount

Weighted
Average
Maturity
(In Years)

$ 1,651,658
3,391,026
754,858
4,180,160

1.0
2.3
0.3
2.9

$ 1,674,064
261,024
-

5.0
0.1
-

$ 9,977,702

6.5

$ 1,935,088

5.1

Continued
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Deposits and Investments, Continued
Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder of the investment. The Authority manages its exposure to credit risk by requiring in its
investment policy to only invest in SAFE Program eligible securities, including but not limited to
a) securities that are direct obligations of or that the payment of the principal and the interest is
unconditionally guaranteed by the U.S. Government, b) securities that are direct obligations of
any agency of the United States of America, c) interest bearing deposits, including certificates
of deposits, of any bank organized under the laws of the United States of America or any state
thereof, and d) general obligations of any county, municipality, agency, political subdivision, or
instrumentality of any of the various other states of the U.S. Government with a rating of “A2” or
better by Moody’s or a rating of “A” or better by Standard & Poor’s.
As of September 31, 2021 and 2020, the Authority’s investments in debt securities had the
following ratings:
Amount
Debt securities:
Municipal bonds
Agency bonds
Certificates of deposit
Corporate bonds
Total debt securities

Debt securities:
Municipal bonds
Certificates of deposit
Total debt securities

Aaa

Rating as of September 30, 2021
Aa
A

Not rated

$ 1,651,658
3,391,026
754,858
4,180,160

$

100,581
3,391,026
514,835

$ 1,551,077
520,965

$

3,144,360

$

754,858
-

$ 9,977,702

$ 4,006,442

$ 2,072,042

$ 3,144,360

$

754,858

Amount

Aaa

Rating as of September 30, 2020
Aa
A
Not rated

$ 1,674,064
261,024

$

101,010
-

$ 1,573,054
-

$

-

$

261,024

$ 1,935,088

$

101,010

$ 1,573,054

$

-

$

261,024

Disclosures Relating to Concentration of Credit Risk
The Authority’s investment policy prohibits investments in any one issuer (other than U.S.
Treasury securities and money market mutual funds) that are in excess of 5% of the Authority’s
total investments. Accordingly, the Authority did not own investments from any one issuer in
excess of 5% as of September 30, 2021 and 2020.
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Net Patient Accounts Receivable
Net patient accounts receivable reported as current assets by the Authority at September 30,
2021 and 2020, consisted of these amounts:
2021
Patient accounts receivable:
Receivable from patients and their
insurance carriers
Receivable from Medicare
Receivable from Medicaid
Total patient accounts receivable
Less allowance for uncollectible amounts
(includes contractual adjustments)
Patient accounts receivable, net
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2020

$ 41,114,337
8,778,238
5,001,323

$ 42,655,698
12,044,261
5,718,904

54,893,898

60,418,863

45,272,191

53,857,203

$ 9,621,707

$ 6,561,660

ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2021 and 2020
__________
6.

Capital Assets
Capital asset balances for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, were as follows:
Balance
September 30,
2020
Land and nondepreciable
assets
Construction-in-progress

$

951,762
1,154,797

Capital assets not
being depreciated
Land improvements
Buildings and
improvements
Fixed equipment
Major moveable
equipment
Software
Capital assets being
depreciated
Less accumulated
depreciation for:
Land improvements
Buildings and
improvements
Fixed equipment
Major moveable
equipment
Software
Total accumulated
depreciation and
amortization
Capital assets being
depreciated, net
Total capital
assets, net

2,106,559

$

Additions

Retirements

2,576,233

$

2,576,233

359,522

-

Transfers

-

$
( 194,410)

-

( 194,410)

Balance
September 30,
2021
$

951,762
3,536,620
4,488,382

-

-

359,522

-

148,831
45,579

36,555,195
26,693,088

36,170,528
24,489,258

235,836
2,158,251

14,143,043
4,322,343

1,081,569
-

(

76,090)
-

-

15,148,522
4,322,343

79,484,694

3,475,656

(

76,090)

194,410

83,078,670

(

242,104)

(

12,850)

-

-

(

(21,086,390)
(21,309,677)

( 967,989)
( 772,033)

-

-

(22,054,379)
(22,081,710)

(11,910,426)
( 324,176)

( 560,108)
( 432,234)

76,090
-

-

(12,394,444)
( 756,410)

(54,872,773)

(2,745,214)

76,090

-

(57,541,897)

-

194,410

25,536,773

24,611,921

730,442

$ 26,718,480

$ 3,306,675
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Capital Assets, Continued
Balance
September 30,
2019
Land and nondepreciable
assets
Construction-in-progress

$

951,762
3,547,155

Capital assets not
being depreciated
Land improvements
Buildings and
improvements
Fixed equipment
Major moveable
equipment
Software
Capital assets being
depreciated
Less accumulated
depreciation for:
Land improvements
Buildings and
improvements
Fixed equipment
Major moveable
equipment
Software
Total accumulated
depreciation and
amortization
Capital assets being
depreciated, net
Total capital
assets, net

4,498,917

$

Additions

Retirements

3,356,112

$

3,356,112

359,522

Transfers

-

$
(5,748,470)

-

(5,748,470)

Balance
September 30,
2020
$

951,762
1,154,797
2,106,559

-

-

-

36,085,437
24,161,638

19,891
177,530

-

65,200
150,090

36,170,528
24,489,258

12,697,718
-

234,488
-

-

1,210,837
4,322,343

14,143,043
4,322,343

73,304,315

431,909

-

5,748,470

79,484,694

(

233,530)

8,574)

-

-

(

(20,050,421)
(20,553,467)

(1,035,969)
( 756,210)

-

-

(21,086,390)
(21,309,677)

(11,374,038)
-

( 536,388)
( 324,176)

-

-

(11,910,426)
( 324,176)

(52,211,456)

(2,661,317)

-

-

(54,872,773)

21,092,859

(2,229,408)

-

$ 25,591,776

(

359,522

$ 1,126,704

$

-

5,748,470
$

-

242,104)

24,611,921
$ 26,718,480

At September 30, 2021 and 2020, the Authority had no outstanding construction contracts.
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Long-Term Debt
A summary of changes in the Authority’s long-term debt for 2021 and 2020 follows:
Balance
September 30,
2020

Direct borrowing:
Cerner project note payable
Bank of Brewton note payable
McMillan Trustmark note
payable (1)
McMillan Trustmark note
payable (2)
Atmore CT note payable
McMillan PPP SBA loan
Atmore PPP SBA loan
Urgent Care note payable
Other notes payable
Capital lease:
Baxter lease payable
Total long-term debt

$ 4,000,000
727,892

Balance
September 30,
2019
Direct borrowing:
Cerner project note payable
Bank of Brewton note payable
McMillan Trustmark note
payable (1)
Atmore CT note payable
McMillan PPP SBA loan
Atmore PPP SBA loan
Other notes payable
Total long-term debt

$

-

$( 230,203)
( 27,013)

$ 3,769,797
700,879

$

-

(4,730,428)

6,042,064
362,648
-

$ 14,550,102

Amounts
Due Within
One Year

Additions

4,730,428
271,041
2,673,357
1,955,238
192,146

Reductions

Balance
September 30,
2021

157,500
$ 6,562,212

Additions

( 77,234)
( 59,254)
(2,673,357)
(1,955,238)
( 97,987)

234,962
30,823

-

-

5,964,830
211,787
362,648
94,159

237,215
61,943
32,324

45,000)

112,500

75,000

$(9,895,714)

$ 11,216,600

$

Reductions

Balance
September 30,
2020

Amounts
Due Within
One Year

$
(

28,085)

$ 4,000,000
727,892

$

(

672,267

$ 2,000,000
755,977

$ 2,000,000
-

230,203
29,469

4,891,659
264,641

314,949
2,673,357
1,955,238
-

( 161,231)
( 43,908)
( 72,495)

4,730,428
271,041
2,673,357
1,955,238
192,146

169,297
59,254
567,073
634,266
98,032

$ 7,912,277

$ 6,943,544

$( 305,719)

$ 14,550,102

$ 1,787,594

The terms and due dates of the Authority’s long-term debt, including capital lease obligations,
at September 30, 2021 and 2020 follows:
Cerner project note payable - In 2019, the Authority entered into a project loan with Trustmark
to cover the cost of implementing a new software system. The original terms were interest only
at a rate of 3.03% until September 23, 2020, at which time the note was refinanced into a longterm note payable at an interest rate of 2.02% with monthly payments of $25,830 due
September 2030.
Continued
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Long-Term Debt, Continued
Bank of Brewton note payable - In 2017, the Authority financed the construction of a medical
building with a note payable at an interest rate of 4.5% with monthly payments of $5,122 due
July 2037.
McMillan Trustmark note payable (1) - In 2015, McMillan completed an addition and
modernization of the emergency room, operating room and outpatient areas financed with a
note payable at an interest rate of 3.375% with monthly payments of $27,175 for 10 years with
a balloon payment of $3,849,707 due August 2025.
McMillan Trustmark note payable (2) - In 2021, McMillan refinanced the McMillan Trustmark
note payable (1) and borrowed additional funds for purchase and installment of a new MRI
machine at an interest rate of 2.44% with monthly payments of $31,841 for 10 years with a
balloon payment of $3,438,825 due May 2031.
Atmore CT note payable - In 2020, Atmore entered into a note payable with KS StateBank for
the purchase of radiology equipment at an interest rate of 4.45% with monthly payments of
$5,842 due December 2025.
Urgent Care note payable - In 2021, the Authority began planning construction of a new urgent
care center to be located in Atmore. To initially fund the project, the Authority entered into an
advance note payable with United Bank in the amount of $3,500,000 at an interest rate of
2.875% due July 2047. Interest is due monthly during the advance period, which ends July
2022. Principal payments will then be calculated and due beginning August 2022. At yearend, only $362,648 was advanced to cover initial planning costs. A construction commitment
was not in place at September 30, 2021.
Subsequent to year end, the Authority entered into financing arrangements to obtain financing
through the New Market Tax Credit (NMTC) Program. These funds will be used for the
purposes of completing the Atmore urgent care construction project. The total financed cost of
the project will be $6,805,000.
Other notes payable - Various McMillan notes for medical equipment financed with the Bank of
Brewton with interest rates ranging from 3.75% to 5.5% with monthly payments of $1,549 to
$7,628 due October 2021 to September 2024.
On May 5, 2020, McMillan received loan proceeds in the amount of $2,673,357 and on April
20, 2020, Atmore received loan proceeds in the amount of $1,955,238 under the Paycheck
Protection Program (PPP). The PPP, established as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security Act (CARES Act), provides for loans to qualifying businesses for amounts
up to 2.5 times of the average monthly payroll expenses of the qualifying business. The loans
and accrued interest are forgivable after the covered period as long as the borrower uses the
loan proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll, benefits, rent and utilities, and maintains
its payroll levels. The amount of loan forgiveness will be reduced if the borrower terminates
employees or reduces salaries during the covered period. The unforgiven portion of the PPP
Continued
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Long-Term Debt, Continued
loan is payable over two years at an interest rate of 1%, with a deferral of payments for the first
ten months after the covered period. The Authority believes its use of the proceeds is
consistent with the PPP and applied for forgiveness. PPP loans greater than $2 million are
subject to review by the Small Business Administration. The Authority will recognize any
forgiveness of the loan at the time the Authority is legally released from the debt. During 2021,
the Authority received full forgiveness approval from the Small Business Administration (SBA).
The gain on forgiveness is reported as nonoperating revenues in the statements of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position.
Baxter lease payable - in 2021, Atmore entered into a lease payable with Baxter Corporation at
a 0% interest rate with monthly payments of $6,250 due March 2023.
All long-term debt instruments held by the Authority contain a provision that in an event of
default, outstanding obligations may become immediately due and payable.
Scheduled principal and interest repayments on long-term debt, including capital lease
payments, are as follows:
Year Ending September 30:

Principal

2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027-2031
2032-2036
2037-2041

$

Total
8.

672,267
1,010,244
618,504
566,081
553,738
7,480,953
264,629
50,184

$ 11,216,600

Interest
$

262,987
246,318
229,713
213,162
199,781
729,895
42,703
1,038

$ 1,925,597

Defined Benefit Plans
Escambia County Health Care Authority Pension Trust
Plan Description
McMillan has a single-employer defined benefit pension plan (DWM Plan) covering certain
eligible employees. The DWM Plan provides benefits of stated amounts for each year of
service. Contributions to the DWM Plan reflect benefits attributed to employees’ services to
date, as well as services expected to be performed in the future. The DWM Plan does not
issue a separate stand-alone financial report.
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Defined Benefit Plans, Continued
Plan Description, Continued
The DWM Plan provides retirement and other benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as
50% of Final Average Pay less 55% of Primary Social Security Benefit, reduced by 4% for each
year of benefit service under 25. Average final compensation is defined as the average salary
for the best five consecutive years out of the last ten years of Credited Service. Early
retirement is available to employees at age 55 with 10 years of service with reduced benefits.
Participant Data
The following is a summary of plan participants as of September 30, 2021 and 2020:
Inactive participants:
Terminated employees currently receiving benefits
Terminated employees not yet receiving benefits
Active participants
Total participants

2021

2020

159
114
211

152
118
220

484

490

Contributions
McMillan is required to annually contribute the actuarially determined contribution, calculated in
accordance with the standards of practice by the Actuarial Standards Board of the American
Academy of Actuaries, equal to the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of
benefits earned by DWM Plan members during the year, with additional amounts to finance
any unfunded accrued liability and administrative expenses.
McMillan’s contribution requirements as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, are as follows:
2021
Actuarially determined contribution

$

Contributions made in relation to the
actuarially determined contribution

2020

578,504

$

578,504

Contribution deficiency

$

Covered payroll

-

$ 12,862,470

Contributions as a percentage of payroll

4.50%
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556,284
556,284

$

-

$ 11,368,961
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Defined Benefit Plans, Continued
Assumptions and Other Inputs
The following summarizes the significant assumptions used in the valuation as of September
30, 2021 and 2020:






Inflation - 2.50%
Expected rate of return - 7.50% per annum
Mortality - PubG-2010(B) Mortality Table
Discount rate - 7.50% per annum
Salary increases - 3.75% per annum

The following table illustrates the allocation and expected rate of return of the Plan Fiduciary
Net Position as of September 30, 2021:
Asset Class
Equities
Fixed income
Real estate
Cash and cash equivalents
Total

Total
Allocation

Expected
Rate of Return

60%
25%
9%
6%

7.50% - 8.50%
2.50% - 3.50%
4.50%
0.00% - 2.00%

100%

The Plan Fiduciary Net Position is projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return on the pension investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.
The following table illustrates the impact of interest rate sensitivity on the Net Pension Liability
for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020:
Net Pension Liability
2021
2020
1.00% decrease (6.50%)
Current discount rate (7.50%)
1.00% increase (8.50%)

$ 5,637,821
$ 3,548,463
$ 1,789,134
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Defined Benefit Plans, Continued
Net Pension Liability
The actuarial valuation of the plan was performed as of October 1, 2019 and 2018; and the
measurement date of the net pension liability was as of September 30, 2020 and 2019.
The following table presents the changes in Total Pension Liability, Plan Fiduciary Net Position,
and Net Pension Liability for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020:

Balance recognized at September 30, 2019

Total Pension
Liability

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position

Net Pension
Liability

$ 17,206,592

$ 13,645,813

$ 3,560,779

Changes recognized for the fiscal year:
Service cost
Interest on the total pension liability
Changes of assumptions
Differences between expected and
actual experience
Contributions from the employer
Net investment income
Benefit payments
Administrative expenses

243,600
1,276,693
162,598
(

455,111)
855,238)
-

(

Net changes
Balance recognized at September 30, 2020
Changes recognized for the fiscal year:
Service cost
Interest on the total pension liability
Changes of assumptions
Differences between expected and
actual experience
Contributions from the employer
Net investment income
Benefit payments
Administrative expenses

(
(

556,284
661,558
855,238)
41,266)

243,600
1,276,693
162,598
(
(
(

455,111)
556,284)
661,558)
41,266

372,542

321,338

51,204

17,579,134

13,967,151

3,611,983

229,161
1,300,776
15,545

(

Net changes
Balance recognized at September 30, 2021

-

150,632
929,241)
-

578,504
1,226,151
( 929,241)
(
45,021)

766,873

830,393

$ 18,346,007

$ 14,797,544

229,161
1,300,776
15,545
150,632
( 578,504)
( 1,226,151)
45,021
(

63,520)

$ 3,548,463

Pension (gain) loss recognized during 2021 and 2020, totaled $452,784 and $(311,575),
respectively.

Continued
33

ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2021 and 2020
__________
8.

Defined Benefit Plans, Continued
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions
The following table presents components of deferred outflows and inflows of resources for the
years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020:
2021
Deferred
Outflows
Difference between expected
and actual experience

$

Net differences between
projected and actual
earnings on Plan
investments

143,664

2020
Deferred
Inflows

$

440,120

Deferred
Outflows
$

46,321

Deferred
Inflows
$

690,443

-

21,247

169,839

-

Change in assumption

184,289

-

278,669

-

Amounts to be recognized
in pension expense

327,953

461,367

494,829

690,443

Contributions made subsequent
to measurement date

582,190

-

578,504

-

Total

$

910,143

$

461,367

$ 1,073,333

$

690,443

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the following year. Amounts reported in deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as
follows:
(Increase)
Decrease
to Expense
Year Ending September 30:
2022
2023
2024
2025

$

Total

$

(
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Defined Benefit Plans, Continued
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions, Continued
GASB No. 68 requires a schedule of changes in net pension liability and related ratios and a
schedule of pension contributions for each of the last ten years to be presented as required
supplementary information. Only information for the years available is presented.
Investments Included in Fiduciary Net Position
The Plan has the following recurring fair value measurements as of September 30, 2021 and
2020:
2021
Cash and cash equivalents

$

Mutual funds:
Fixed income
Equities
Total mutual funds

931,466

2020
$

231,009

580,682
8,809,821

664,036
8,400,995

9,390,503

9,065,031

Pooled funds:
Real estate

1,373,277

Debt securities:
Corporate bonds
U.S. government obligations

1,672,005
1,430,293

2,615,249
2,055,862

Total debt securities

3,102,298

4,671,111

$ 14,797,544

$ 13,967,151

Plan fiduciary net position

-

The fair value of the above mutual funds is determined based on quoted market prices as of
September 30, 2021 and 2020, which is considered Level 1 within the GASB fair value
hierarchy. The fair value of the above pooled funds and debt securities are determined based
on a confluence of model-driven analysis, matrix pricing, as well as actual trade and market
color, which is considered Level 2 within the GASB fair value hierarchy.
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Defined Benefit Plans, Continued
ACH Pension Plan
Plan Description
Atmore has a single-employer defined benefit pension plan (ACH Plan) covering certain eligible
employees. The ACH Plan provides benefits of stated amounts for each year of service.
Contributions to the ACH Plan reflect benefits attributed to employees’ services to date, as well
as services expected to be performed in the future. The ACH Plan does not issue a separate
stand-alone financial report.
The ACH Plan provides retirement and other benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as
50% of Final Average Pay less 55% of Primary Social Security Benefit, reduced by 4% for each
year of benefit service under 25. Average final compensation is defined as the average salary
for the best five consecutive years out of the last ten years of Credited Service. Early
retirement is available to employees at age 55 with 10 years of service with reduced benefits.
Participant Data
The following is a summary of plan participants as of September 30, 2021 and 2020:

Inactive participants:
Terminated employees currently receiving benefits
Terminated employees not yet receiving benefits
Active participants
Total participants
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2021

2020

67
81
28

64
83
31

176
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Defined Benefit Plans, Continued
Contributions
Atmore is required to annually contribute the actuarially determined contribution, calculated in
accordance with the standards of practice by the Actuarial Standards Board of the American
Academy of Actuaries, equal to the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of
benefits earned by ACH Plan members during the year, with additional amounts to finance any
unfunded accrued liability and administrative expenses.
Atmore’s contribution requirements as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, are as follows:
2021
Actuarially determined contribution

$

Contributions made in relation to the
actuarially determined contribution

54,735

2020
$

54,735

Contribution deficiency

$

-

52,073
52,073

$

-

Covered payroll

N/A

N/A

Contributions as a percentage of payroll

N/A

N/A
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Defined Benefit Plans, Continued
Assumptions and Other Inputs
The following summarizes the significant assumptions used in the valuation as of September
30, 2021:






Inflation - 2.50%
Expected rate of return - 7.00% per annum
Mortality - PubG-2010(B) Mortality Table
Discount rate - 7.00% per annum
Salary increases - N/A

The following table illustrates the allocation and expected rate of return of the Plan Fiduciary
Net Position as of September 30, 2021:
Total
Allocation

Asset Class
Equities
Fixed income
Cash and cash equivalents

58%
40%
2%

Total

Expected
Rate of Return
7.50%-8.50%
2.50%-3.50%
0.00%-2.00%

100%

The Plan Fiduciary Net Position is projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return on the pension investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.
The following table illustrates the impact of interest rate sensitivity on the Net Pension Liability
(Asset) for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020:
Net Pension Liability (Asset)
2021
2020
1.00% decrease (6.00%)
Current discount rate (7.00%)
1.00% increase (8.00%)

$ 553,531
$ 243,856
$( 21,834)
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Defined Benefit Plans, Continued
Net Pension Liability
The actuarial valuation of the plan was performed as of October 1, 2019 and 2018, and the
measurement date of the net pension liability was as of September 30, 2020 and 2019.
The following table presents the changes in Total Pension Liability, Plan Fiduciary Net Position,
and Net Pension Liability for the years ended, September 30, 2021 and 2020:
Total Pension
Liability

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position

$ 3,392,841

$ 3,168,190

Balance recognized at September 30, 2019
Changes recognized for the fiscal year:
Service cost
Interest on the total pension liability
Changes of assumptions
Differences between expected and
actual experience
Contributions from the employer
Net investment income
Benefit payments
Administrative expenses

6,188
227,792
( 11,282)
(

Net changes
Balance recognized at September 30, 2020

224,651

6,188
227,792
( 11,282)

52,073
153,616
( 289,726)
( 17,940)

(

( 101,977)

30,278

3,066,213

254,929

71,699)

4,769
223,275
75,314
( 272,531)
-

Net changes
Balance recognized at September 30, 2021

$

4,671)
( 289,726)
-

3,321,142

Changes recognized for the fiscal year:
Service cost
Interest on the total pension liability
Changes of assumptions
Differences between expected and
actual experience
Contributions from the employer
Net investment income
Benefit payments
Administrative expenses

-

Net Pension
Liability

(
4,671)
( 52,073)
( 153,616)
17,940

54,735
267,546
( 272,531)
(
7,850)

4,769
223,275
75,314
( 54,735)
( 267,546)
7,850

30,827

41,900

(

$ 3,351,969

$ 3,108,113

$

11,073)
243,856

Pension (gain) loss recognized during 2021 and 2020, totaled $75,542 and $(16,779),
respectively.
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Defined Benefit Plans, Continued
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions
The following table presents components of deferred outflows and inflows of resources for the
years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020:
2021
Deferred
Outflows
Net differences between
projected and actual
earnings on Plan
investments

$

Amounts to be recognized
in pension expense

Deferred
Inflows

$

24,164

-

Contributions made subsequent
to measurement date
Total

-

2020

60,945
$

60,945

$

Deferred
Outflows

$

7,716

Deferred
Inflows

$

-

24,164

7,716

-

-

54,735

-

24,164

$

62,451

$

-

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the following year. Amounts reported in deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as
follows:
(Increase)
Decrease
to Expense
Year Ending September 30:
2022
2023
2024
2025

$
(

13,674
1,991)
319
12,162

Total

$

24,164

GASB No. 68 requires a schedule of changes in net pension liability and related ratios and a
schedule of pension contributions for each of the last ten years to be presented as required
supplementary information. Only information for the years available is presented.
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Defined Benefit Plans, Continued
Investments Included in Fiduciary Net Position
The ACH Plan has the following recurring fair value measurements as of September 30, 2021
and 2020:
2021
Cash and cash equivalents

$

Mutual funds:
Fixed income
Equities
Total mutual funds
Plan fiduciary net position

47,757

2020
$

97,650

1,252,907
1,807,449

1,258,566
1,709,997

3,060,356

2,968,563

$ 3,108,113

$ 3,066,213

The fair value of the above mutual funds is determined based on quoted market prices as of
September 30, 2021 and 2020, which is considered Level 1 within the GASB fair value
hierarchy.
9.

Defined Contribution Plans
McMillan provides additional retirement benefits to its employees through the D. W. McMillan
Memorial Hospital 457(b) Deferred Compensation Plan (McMillan 457(b) Plan), a defined
contribution plan, and the D. W. McMillan Memorial Hospital 401(a) Plan (McMillan 401(a)
Plan), a defined contribution plan. The McMillan 457(b) Plan covers essentially all employees
from the date of employment, while the McMillan 401(a) Plan is for employer contributions only
to employees after one year of service.
Employees may make contributions to the McMillan 457(b) Plan in any amount subject to the
maximum annual amount as set periodically by the Internal Revenue Service. Employees are
vested immediately in their contributions to the McMillan 457(b) Plan. McMillan makes
matching contributions in the McMillan 401(a) plan of 50% of the employee’s contribution to the
McMillan 457(b) Plan that do not exceed 2% of the employee’s compensation. Employees are
vested in McMillan’s contributions after 3 years of service. McMillan’s contributions to the
McMillan 401(a) Plan were $121,490 and $87,030 in 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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Defined Contribution Plans, Continued
Atmore has a defined contribution 403(b) profit-sharing plan (Atmore Community Hospital
403(b) Plan). All Atmore full-time employees who have completed one year of service and
have attained age 21 are eligible to participate in the 403(b) Plan. Qualified employees may
contribute up to 100% of their pretax annual compensation not to exceed statutory limits.
Employees are vested immediately in their contributions. Atmore makes matching
contributions for all participants equal to 50% of the first 6% of employee contributions of base
compensation that a participant contributes to the Plan. Employees are vested in Atmore’s
contributions after 3 years of service. Atmore’s contributions to the Plan were $210,238 and
$201,403 in 2021 and 2020, respectively. Atmore may also make non-elective discretionary
contributions. No non-elective contributions were made in 2021 and 2020.
All plans are administered by Nationwide Financial Services, Inc.

10.

Medicaid Subsidies
In addition to receiving payments from Medicaid for services to hospital patients, the Authority
also receives disproportionate share payments and access payments from Medicaid. The net
funds received by the Authority amounted to approximately $2,587,000 and $2,318,000,
respectively for Atmore and $4,078,000 and $4,502,000, respectively for McMillan for the years
ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, and are included in the accompanying financial
statements as operating revenues.

11.

Professional Liability
The Authority is insured by a claims made medical professional liability policy through the thirdparty insurance company of Inspirien Insurance Company (formally Coastal Insurance
Company). Liability limits related to this policy in 2021 and 2020, are $1 million per occurrence
and $3 million in aggregate. In connection with obtaining this coverage, the Authority
purchased 38,601 shares of the insurance carrier’s subscriber stock at a cost of $385,990.
This stock has been reported as other assets in the accompanying balance sheet. The current
policy expires in 2022, and premiums are expensed pro rata over the policy period.
Various claims and assertions have been made against the Authority in its normal course of
providing services. In addition, other claims may be asserted arising from services provided to
patients in the past. In the opinion of management, adequate provision has been considered
for losses, which may occur from such asserted and unasserted claims that are not covered by
liability insurance.
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Commitments and Contingencies
Compliance Plan
The healthcare industry has been subjected to increased scrutiny from governmental agencies
at both the federal and state level with respect to compliance with regulations. Areas of
noncompliance identified at the federal level include Medicare and Medicaid, Internal Revenue
Service, and other regulations governing the healthcare industry. In addition, the Reform
Legislation includes provisions aimed at reducing fraud, waste, and abuse in the healthcare
industry. These provisions allocate significant additional resources to federal enforcement
agencies and expand the use of private contractors to recover potentially inappropriate
Medicare and Medicaid payments. The Authority has not contracted with an outside firm for an
external evaluation of the potential impact of such compliance issues. There can be no
assurance that the Authority will not be subjected to future investigations with accompanying
monetary damages. However, based on an internal evaluation, management believes that the
ultimate liability resulting from potential noncompliance will not have a material adverse effect
on the financial statements.
Health Care Reform
There has been increasing pressure on Congress and some state legislatures to control and
reduce the cost of healthcare at the federal and the state levels. Legislation has been passed
that includes cost controls on healthcare providers, insurance market reforms, delivery system
reforms and various individual and business mandates among other provisions. The costs of
these provisions are and will be funded in part by reductions in payments by government
programs, including Medicare and Medicaid. There can be no assurance that these changes
will not adversely affect the Authority.
Litigation
The Authority is involved in litigation and regulatory investigations arising in the course of
business. After consultation with legal counsel, management estimates that these matters will
be resolved without material adverse effect on the Authority’s future financial position or results
from operations. See professional liability disclosures in Note 11.
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Fair Value Measurement
The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the
valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets, Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs and
Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.
The Authority has the following recurring fair value measurements as of September 30, 2021
and 2020:

Fair Value
September 30, 2021
Assets:
Money market mutual funds
Municipal bonds
Agency bonds
Certificates of deposit
Corporate bonds
Marketable equity securities
Total investments
September 30, 2020
Assets:
Money market mutual funds
Municipal bonds
Certificates of deposit
Marketable equity securities
Total investments

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical Assets/
Liabilities
(Level 1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

$ 2,718,695
1,651,658
3,391,026
754,858
4,180,160
92,333

$ 2,718,695
92,333

$

1,651,658
3,391,026
754,858
4,180,160
-

$

-

$ 12,788,730

$ 2,811,028

$ 9,977,702

$

-

$ 16,761,444
1,674,063
261,025
92,333

$ 16,761,444
92,333

$

1,674,063
261,025
-

$

-

$ 18,788,865

$ 16,853,777

$ 1,935,088

$

-

Debt securities classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using a matrix pricing
technique. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities’ relationship to
benchmark quoted prices.
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Concentrations of Credit Risk
The Authority grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables from patients and
third-party payors at September 30, 2021 and 2020, was as follows:

Medicare
Medicaid
Other third-party payors
Patients
Total
15.

2021

2020

16%
9%
57%
18%

20%
9%
44%
27%

100%

100%

Coronavirus (COVID-19)
As a result of the spread of the COVID-19 coronavirus, economic uncertainties have arisen.
The outbreak has put an unprecedented strain on the U.S. healthcare system, disrupted or
delayed production and delivery of materials and products in the supply chain, and caused
staffing shortages. The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the Authority's operational and
financial performance depends on certain developments, including the duration and spread of
the outbreak, remedial actions and stimulus measures adopted by local and federal
governments, and impact on the Authority's customers, employees and vendors all of which
are uncertain and cannot be predicted. At this point, the extent to which COVID-19 may impact
the Authority's financial position or results of operations is uncertain.
On March 27, 2020, the President signed the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security
Act (CARES Act). Certain provisions of the CARES Act provide relief funds to hospitals and
other healthcare providers. The funding will be used to support healthcare-related expenses or
lost revenue attributable to COVID-19. The U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
began distributing funds on April 10, 2020, to eligible providers in an effort to provide relief to
both providers in areas heavily impacted by COVID-19 and those providers who are struggling
to keep their doors open due to healthy patients delaying care and canceling elective services.
On April 24, 2020, the Paycheck Protection Program and Health Care Enhancement Act was
passed. This Act provides additional funding to replenish and supplement key programs under
the CARES Act, including funds to health care providers for COVID-19 testing. Grant and
contribution advance payments are reported as unearned revenue until all eligibility
requirements are met. Recognized revenue is reported as nonoperating revenues in the
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. The Authority received
approximately $807,000 and $18,436,000 in grant stimulus funding in fiscal years 2021 and
2020, respectively.
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Coronavirus (COVID-19), Continued
The recipients of CARES Act funding may be subject to audits. While the Authority currently
believes its use of the funds is in compliance with the applicable terms and conditions, there is
a possibility that payments could be recouped based on changes in reporting requirements or
audit results.
The Authority has received the following program funding:


$30 Billion General Distribution (1st round) - On April 10, 2020, HHS distributed $30 billion
to nearly 320,000 Medicare fee-for-service providers based on their portion of 2019
Medicare fee-for-service payments. The Authority received and recognized approximately
$776,000 in funding from this distribution.



$20 Billion General Distribution (2nd round) - On April 24, 2020, HHS distributed $20 billion
to Medicare fee-for-service providers based on revenues from cost report data or revenue
submissions. The Authority received and recognized approximately $238,000 in funding
from this distribution.



$10 Billion Rural Distribution - On May 6, 2020, HHS distributed $10 billion to almost 4,000
rural health care providers including hospitals, health clinics, and health centers. The
Authority received and recognized approximately $7,058,000 in funding from this
distribution.



$225 Million for COVID-19 Testing - On May 20, 2020, HHS distributed $225 million to
over 4,500 rural health clinics (RHCs) based on a fixed payment of $49,461 per RHC. The
Authority received and recognized approximately $198,000 in funding from this distribution.



$10 Billion Safety Net Hospitals Distribution - On June 12, 2020, HHS distributed $10
billion to almost 800 providers that disproportionately serve Medicaid recipients and the
uninsured. The Authority received and recognized approximately $10,000,000 in funding
from this distribution.



Alabama Small Rural Hospital Improvement Program (SHIP) Grant - In July of 2020, the
Alabama Hospital Association announced that the Health Resources and Services
Administration's (HRSA) Federal Office of Rural Health Policy received $180 million to
support COVID-19 related activities, of which nearly $150 million will go to hospitals
responding to the health crisis through the SHIP grant mechanism. In 2020, the Authority
received and recognized approximately $83,000 for McMillan and $83,000 for Atmore in
COVID-19 related funding from the SHIP program.
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Coronavirus (COVID-19), Continued
On March 11, 2021, the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) was passed. This Act provides
additional financial assistance for state and local governments, education, housing, food
assistance, and additional grant programs. The Authority received the following program
funding related to this Act:


$425 million Rural Health Clinic Distribution - On June 10, 2021, HHS distributed $425
million to over 4,200 RHCs for COVID-19 testing and mitigation based on a fixed
payment of $100,000 per RHC. The Authority received and recorded as unearned
CARES Act funding approximately $400,000 in funding from this distribution.

The CARES Act also did the following:


Sequestration - Suspended the Medicare sequestration payment adjustment, which
reduces payments to providers by 2%, for the period May 1, 2020 through December 31,
2020, and extended to March 31, 2022, with subsequent legislation. Beginning April 1,
2022, the suspension is phased out through June 30, 2022.



Medicare Add-on for Inpatient Hospital COVID-19 Patients - Increased the Medicare
payment for hospital patients admitted with COVID-19 by 20%.



Payroll Tax Deferral for Employers - Allows qualifying providers to defer the employer
portion of payroll taxes - 6.2% for Social Security taxes - due from March 27, 2020, through
December 31, 2020. For fiscal years 2021 and 2020, the Authority had deferred payments
of approximately $1,018,000 and $744,000 in Social Security payroll taxes, respectively.
One-half of the payments are due December 31, 2021, with the remaining due by
December 31, 2022.

The CARES Act and ARPA funding is reported as unearned revenue until all eligibility
requirements are met. Recognized revenue is reported as nonoperating revenues in the
statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position.
CARES Act and ARPA funding may be subject to audits. While the Authority currently
believes its use of the funds is in compliance with applicable terms and conditions, there is a
possibility payments could be recouped based on changes in reporting requirements or audit
results.
16.

Blended Component Units
As discussed in Note 1, the Authority is required to disclose combining information to
distinguish between the Authority and its blended component units. Schedules
summarizing the combining information for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020,
follows on pages 48 through 57.
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BALANCE SHEETS
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Authority
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, net of estimated uncollectibles
Due (to) from related parties
Other receivables
Estimated third-party payor settlements
Supplies
Current portion of notes receivable
Prepaid expenses
Tax revenue receivable

$ 2,344,687
315,371
( 922,724)
14,490
73,801
1,763,000

McMillan
$ 2,180,305
5,718,998
1,528,312
300,257
187,145
655,749
180,403
139,015
-

Foundation
$

51,931
-

Atmore
$ 4,292,033
3,587,338
( 1,361,970)
18,397
24,919
501,675
237,880
-

Eliminations
$

2021
Combined

23,277
756,382
-

$ 8,892,233
9,621,707
333,144
212,064
1,231,225
180,403
376,895
1,763,000

779,659

22,610,671

3,588,625

10,890,184

51,931

7,300,272

1,544,472
-

10,113,433

1,038,491
-

44,904
92,333

-

1,544,472
1,038,491
44,904
10,205,766

Total noncurrent cash and investments

1,544,472

10,113,433

1,038,491

137,237

-

12,833,633

Capital assets:
Non-depreciable
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation

902,362
7,414,723

3,514,385
14,465,426

-

71,635
3,656,624

-

4,488,382
25,536,773

8,317,085

17,979,811

-

3,728,259

-

30,025,155

-

241,199
285,154

-

119,640

-

241,199
404,794

-

526,353

-

119,640

-

645,993

Total current assets
Noncurrent cash and investments:
Held by trustee for malpractice
Restricted by contributors for capital expenditures
Restricted by contributors for scholarships
Long-term investments

Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Other assets:
Notes receivable, net of current portion
Other assets
Total other assets
Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

13,450,182
$ 13,450,182

39,509,781
910,143
$ 40,419,924
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$ 1,090,422
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779,659

60,945
$ 11,346,353
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779,659

66,115,452
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Blended Component Units, Continued
BALANCE SHEETS, Continued
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION
McMillan

Authority
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Other current liabilities
CARES Act unearned revenue
Total current liabilities

$
(

265,785
124,426
36,031
13,196)
-

$

269,539
1,397,568
1,853,977
864,687
100,000

Foundation
$

-

Atmore
$

136,943
544,240
1,234,344
683,786
300,000

Eliminations
$

-

2021
Combined
$

672,267
2,066,234
3,124,352
1,535,277
400,000

413,046

4,485,771

-

2,899,313

-

7,798,130

4,567,539
-

5,789,449
3,548,463

-

187,345
243,856

-

10,544,333
3,792,319

Total liabilities

4,980,585

13,823,683

-

3,330,514

-

22,134,782

Deferred inflows of resources

1,763,000

461,367

-

24,164

-

2,248,531

6,743,585

14,285,050

-

3,354,678

-

24,383,313

3,483,761

11,920,824

-

3,403,970

-

18,808,555

3,222,836

14,214,050

1,038,491
51,931

44,904
4,542,801

779,659

1,083,395
22,811,277

6,706,597

26,134,874

1,090,422

7,991,675

779,659

42,703,227

$ 13,450,182

$ 40,419,924

$ 1,090,422

$ 11,346,353

779,659

$ 67,086,540

Other liabilities:
Long-term debt, excluding current maturities
Net pension liability

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:
Expendable
Unrestricted
Total net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and net position
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Blended Component Units, Continued
BALANCE SHEETS, Continued
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, net of
estimated uncollectibles
Due (to) from related parties
Other receivables
Estimated third-party payor settlements
Supplies
Prepaid expenses
Tax revenue receivable

Authority

McMillan

$ 2,534,018

$ 2,067,306

234,316
( 1,089,281)
68,514
59,473
1,642,175

3,803,526
1,788,610
570,880
357,445
725,548
137,916
-

3,449,215

9,451,231

1,439,216
-

Total noncurrent cash and investments
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation

Total current assets
Noncurrent cash and investments:
Held by trustee for malpractice
Restricted by contributors for capital expenditures
Restricted by contributors for scholarships
Long-term investments

Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation
Other assets:
Notes receivable, net of current portion
Other assets
Total other assets
Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

Foundation
$

51,722

$ 10,130,460

Eliminations
$

-

2020
Combined
$ 14,783,506

2,523,818
( 1,478,988)
(
1,236)
(
44,084)
477,102
185,754
-

779,659
-

6,561,660
638,158
313,361
1,262,123
323,670
1,642,175

51,722

11,792,826

779,659

25,524,653

16,228,219

1,029,097
-

44,904
92,333

-

1,439,216
1,029,097
44,904
16,320,552

1,439,216

16,228,219

1,029,097

137,237

-

18,833,769

523,913
7,908,075

1,560,594
13,464,167

-

22,052
3,239,679

-

2,106,559
24,611,921

8,431,988

15,024,761

-

3,261,731

-

26,718,480

-

280,595
296,809

-

119,640

-

280,595
416,449

-

577,404

-

119,640

-

697,044

13,320,419
$ 13,320,419

41,281,615
1,073,333
$ 42,354,948

Continued
50

-

Atmore

1,080,819
$ 1,080,819

15,311,434
62,451
$ 15,373,885

$

779,659

71,773,946
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1,135,784
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Blended Component Units, Continued
BALANCE SHEETS, Continued
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION
McMillan

Authority
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Other current liabilities
CARES Act unearned revenue
Total current liabilities

$

259,672
6,567
1,728

$

812,100
1,278,738
1,737,179
422,904
4,677,643

Foundation
$

-

Atmore
$

715,822
1,015,959
1,042,422
619,919
5,708,928

Eliminations
$

2020
Combined

-

$ 1,787,594
2,301,264
2,779,601
1,042,823
10,388,299

267,967

8,928,564

-

9,103,050

-

18,299,581

4,468,220
-

6,761,529
3,611,983

-

1,532,759
254,929

-

12,762,508
3,866,912

Total liabilities

4,736,187

19,302,076

-

10,890,738

-

34,929,001

Deferred inflows of resources

1,642,175

690,443

-

-

2,332,618

6,378,362

19,992,519

-

10,890,738

-

37,261,619

3,705,811

10,124,490

-

2,968,387

-

16,798,688

3,236,246

12,237,939

1,029,097
51,722

44,904
1,469,856

779,659

1,074,001
17,775,422

6,942,057

22,362,429

1,080,819

4,483,147

779,659

35,648,111

$ 13,320,419

$ 42,354,948

$ 1,080,819

$ 15,373,885

779,659

$ 72,909,730

Other liabilities:
Long-term debt, excluding current maturities
Net pension liability

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:
Expendable
Unrestricted
Total net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and net position
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Blended Component Units, Continued
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Authority
Operating revenues:
Net patient services revenue (net of provision for bad debts)
Other revenue

$ 1,569,039
1,384,566

$ 30,064,883
2,270,685

2,953,605

32,335,568

1,241,210
244,795
931,407
1,715,535
793,657

16,908,494
3,361,116
3,826,842
10,600,867
1,331,222

4,926,604

36,028,541

( 1,972,999)

( 3,692,973)

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and other
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses
Operating loss
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Ad valorem tax revenues
Interest expense
Investment income
Gain on sale of assets
Forgiveness of PPP loan
CARES Act funding
Noncapital grants and contributions

(

Total nonoperating revenues
Excess revenues (expenses) before capital
grants and contributions

Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

1,642,175
81,006)
78,624
1,000
48,469
48,277
1,737,539

(

Capital grants and contributions
Increase (decrease) in net position

McMillan

235,460)

(

235,460)

$

(

Atmore

Eliminations

2021
Combined

-

$ 18,675,678
375,506

$
( 1,385,055)

$ 50,309,600
2,645,702

-

19,051,184

( 1,385,055)

52,955,302

3,642
-

11,973,452
2,028,821
3,734,044
4,942,452
620,335

(
(

325,511)
23,902)
( 1,035,642)
-

29,797,645
5,610,830
8,492,293
16,226,854
2,745,214

3,642

23,299,104

( 1,385,055)

62,872,836

3,642)

( 4,247,920)

7,465,418

13,245

7,756,448

-

16,972,650

3,772,445

9,603

3,508,528

-

7,055,116

-

-

(

-

87,515
87,515)
-

( 9,917,534)

13,037
208

(

27,649)
6,158
1,955,238
5,822,701
-

-

146,342)
4,072
2,673,357
4,924,131
10,200

(

Foundation

-

1,642,175
167,482)
14,376
1,000
4,628,595
10,795,301
58,685

(

-

3,772,445

9,603

3,508,528

-

7,055,116

6,942,057

22,362,429

1,080,819

4,483,147

779,659

35,648,111

$ 6,706,597

$ 26,134,874

$ 1,090,422

$ 7,991,675

779,659

$ 42,703,227
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Blended Component Units, Continued
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION, Continued
Authority
Operating revenues:
Net patient services revenue (net of provision for bad debts)
Other revenue

$ 1,319,160
779,241

$ 24,626,052
3,195,115

2,098,401

Total nonoperating revenues
Excess revenues (expenses) before capital
grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Increase (decrease) in net position
Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

Eliminations

2020
Combined

$
(

899,309)

$ 40,436,253
3,590,644

27,821,167

-

15,006,638

(

899,309)

44,026,897

691,077
153,662
1,466,478
1,919,161
688,008

12,748,750
2,710,883
3,704,360
9,301,672
1,330,929

955
3,595
-

9,791,012
1,804,753
4,492,433
3,946,442
642,380

899,309)
-

23,230,839
4,669,298
9,664,226
14,271,561
2,661,317

4,918,386

29,796,594

4,550

20,677,020

899,309)

54,497,241

( 2,819,985)

( 1,975,427)

4,550)

( 5,670,382)

-

(10,470,344)

Total operating expenses

(

(

14,418
91

1,613,710

4,570,685

14,509

4,533,123

-

10,732,027

( 1,206,275)

2,595,258

9,959

( 1,137,259)

-

261,683

-

-

( 1,137,259)

-

261,683

779,659

35,386,428

779,659

$ 35,648,111

(

-

-

-

(

20,938)
4,232
3,538,551
1,011,278

(

175,283)
111,080
4,509,198
125,690

(

1,605,128
104,559)
73,674
39,467

$

Atmore
$ 14,491,041
515,597

Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Purchased services
Supplies and other
Depreciation and amortization

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Ad valorem tax revenues
Interest expense
Investment income
Gain on sale of assets
CARES Act funding
Noncapital grants and contributions

Foundation
-

Total operating revenues

Operating loss

McMillan

-

( 1,206,275)

2,595,258

9,959

8,148,332

19,767,171

1,070,860

5,620,406

$ 6,942,057

$ 22,362,429

$ 1,080,819

$ 4,483,147
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Blended Component Units, Continued
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Authority
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from and on behalf of patients
Payments to suppliers and contractors
Payments to employees
Other receipts and payments, net
Net cash used by operating activities
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Ad valorem tax revenues
CARES Act funding
Noncapital grants and contributions
Transfers (to) from related parties
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt

Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments
Sale of investments
Investment income

Foundation

Atmore

Eliminations

$ 28,590,334
(13,658,483)
(20,563,138)
2,270,685

$
(

3,642)
-

$ 17,523,522
( 9,161,047)
(13,795,754)
375,506

( 1,080,007)

( 3,360,602)

(

3,642)

( 5,057,773)

-

( 9,502,024)

413,773
93,739)
-

-

1,642,175
807,002
58,685
-

320,034

-

2,507,862

126,556)
27,649)
929,363)

87,515
-

6,404,712
( 5,267,119)
( 167,482)
1,000
( 5,894,389)

( 1,083,568)

87,515

( 4,923,278)
(14,154,680)
6,082,190
55,907
( 8,016,583)

1,642,175
46,741
48,277
( 276,624)
-

346,488
10,200
370,363
-

1,460,569

727,051

208
208

(

362,648
257,216)
81,006)
1,000
678,755)

6,042,064
( 4,883,347)
( 146,342)
( 4,286,271)

-

(

653,329)

( 3,273,896)

-

(

223,602)
77,359

(13,802,535)
6,082,190
50,125

(

(
(

(

(
(
(

$

1,035,642
349,413
( 1,385,055)

2021
Combined

$ 1,542,008
( 2,556,607)
( 1,449,974)
1,384,566

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities:
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt
Proceeds on sale of capital assets
Purchases of capital assets

McMillan

128,543)
9,781

6,157

(

87,515)

6,157

(

87,515)

$ 47,655,864
(24,344,137)
(35,459,453)
2,645,702

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

(

146,243)

( 7,670,220)

(

118,762)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

(

419,010)

(13,577,667)

(

122,196)

( 5,815,150)

-

(19,934,023)

283,898

10,175,364

-

31,589,854

161,702

$ 4,360,214

-

$ 11,655,831

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

3,096,091

18,034,501

$ 2,677,081

$ 4,456,834
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Blended Component Units, Continued
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS, Continued
Authority

McMillan

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
to the balance sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents - current
Cash and cash equivalents - noncurrent

$ 2,344,687
332,394

$ 2,180,305
2,276,529

Total cash and cash equivalents

$ 2,677,081

$ 4,456,834

$

$( 1,972,999)

$( 3,692,973)

$(

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
flows used by operating activities:
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net
cash flows used by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for notes receivable
Provisions for bad debts
Changes in:
Patient accounts receivable
Estimated third-party payor settlements
Other receivables
Supplies
Prepaid expenses
Notes receivable
Deferred outflows of resources
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Other current liabilities
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows of resources
Net cash used by operating activities

Foundation

$

Atmore

51,931
109,771

$ 4,315,310
44,904

161,702

$ 4,360,214

3,642)

$( 4,247,920)

Eliminations

$

$

2021
Combined

-

$ 8,892,233
2,763,598

-

$ 11,655,831

-

$( 9,917,534)

793,657
1,141,408

1,331,222
139,913
9,972,675

-

620,335
9,775,854

-

2,745,214
139,913
20,889,937

( 1,222,463)
54,024
(
14,328)
117,859
36,031
(
13,196)
-

(11,888,147)
170,300
270,623
69,799
(
1,099)
( 280,920)
163,190
118,830
116,798
441,783
(
63,520)
( 229,076)

-

(10,839,374)
(
69,003)
(
19,633)
(
24,573)
(
52,126)
1,506
( 471,719)
191,922
63,867
(
11,073)
24,164

-

(23,949,984)
101,297
305,014
30,898
(
53,225)
( 280,920)
164,696
( 235,030)
344,751
492,454
(
74,593)
( 204,912)

$( 1,080,007)

$( 3,360,602)

$( 5,057,773)

-

$( 9,502,024)
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Blended Component Units, Continued
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS, Continued
Authority
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from and on behalf of patients
Payments to suppliers and contractors
Payments to employees
Other receipts and payments, net
Net cash used by operating activities
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Ad valorem tax revenues
CARES Act funding
Noncapital grants and contributions
Transfers (to) from related parties
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities:
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt
Purchases of capital assets
Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments
Sale of investments
Investment income

$ 1,587,300
( 3,450,901)
( 844,739)
779,241

McMillan
$ 23,431,335
(12,186,856)
(15,232,404)
3,195,115

$
(

4,550)
-

$ 14,557,511
( 8,355,908)
(11,501,997)
515,597

4,550)

Eliminations
$

2020
Combined

899,309
899,309)

$ 39,576,146
(23,098,906)
(27,579,140)
3,590,644

( 4,784,797)

-

( 7,511,256)

91

9,247,479
1,011,278
1,107,515
1,955,238

-

1,605,128
18,436,048
1,176,526
4,628,595

91

13,321,510

-

25,846,297

(

(

1,605,128
1,728
39,467
( 102,487)
-

9,186,841
125,690
( 1,005,028)
2,673,357

1,543,836

10,980,860

2,000,000
(
28,085)
( 104,559)
( 1,485,016)

( 233,726)
( 175,283)
( 1,330,545)

-

(
(
(

314,950
43,908)
20,938)
972,460)

110,593
-

2,314,950
( 305,719)
( 190,187)
( 3,788,021)

( 1,739,554)

-

(

722,356)

110,593

( 1,968,977)
(14,404,132)
18,836,894
128,292

( 1,946,675)
1,911,963
103,647

(

Atmore

( 1,929,099)

382,340

792,810)

Foundation

-

(11,641,771)
16,207,945
116,472

(

815,686)
716,986
14,655

4,111

(

110,593)

(

110,593)

4,561,054

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

68,935

4,682,646

(

84,045)

4,111

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

66,012

13,131,142

(

88,504)

7,818,468

-

20,927,118

3,030,079

4,903,359

372,402

2,356,896

-

10,662,736

$ 3,096,091

$ 18,034,501

283,898

$ 10,175,364

-

$ 31,589,854

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Continued
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ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
September 30, 2021 and 2020
__________
16.

Blended Component Units, Continued
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS, Continued
Authority

McMillan

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
to the balance sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents - current
Cash and cash equivalents - noncurrent

$ 2,534,018
562,073

$ 2,067,306
15,967,195

Total cash and cash equivalents

$ 3,096,091

$ 18,034,501

$

$( 2,819,985)

$( 1,975,427)

$(

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
flows used by operating activities:
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net
cash flows used by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Provisions for bad debts
Changes in:
Patient accounts receivable
Estimated third-party payor settlements
Other receivables
Supplies
Prepaid expenses
Notes receivable
Deferred outflows of resources
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Other current liabilities
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows of resources
Net cash used by operating activities

(
(

(

Foundation

$

Atmore

51,722
232,176

$ 10,130,460
44,904

283,898

$ 10,175,364

4,550)

$( 5,670,382)

Eliminations

$

$

2020
Combined

-

$ 14,783,506
16,806,348

-

$ 31,589,854

-

$(10,470,344)

688,008
916,054

1,330,929
10,322,878

-

642,380
13,702,599

-

2,661,317
24,941,531

893,964)
246,050
9,088)
56,174)
-

(10,458,516)
( 738,619)
( 320,460)
( 248,071)
59,167
( 167,135)
( 1,073,333)
585,176
726,050
422,904
51,204
690,443

-

(13,690,629)
(
13,278)
67,778
( 114,451)
(
85,545)
(
62,451)
(
85,863)
343,206
368,826
30,278
( 217,265)

-

(25,043,109)
( 751,897)
(
6,632)
( 371,610)
(
26,378)
( 167,135)
( 1,135,784)
443,139
1,069,256
791,730
81,482
473,178

$( 4,784,797)

-

$( 7,511,256)

$( 1,929,099)

$(

792,810)
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$(

4,550)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
___________

ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
Escambia County Health Care Authority Pension Trust
September 30, 2021, 2020, 2019, 2018, and 2017
__________
2020

2021
Total pension liability:
Service cost
Interest cost
Differences between expected and
actual experiences
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments

$

229,161
1,300,776

(

Net changes in total pension liability
Total pension liability (beginning)
Total pension liability (ending)
Plan fiduciary net position:
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employees
Differences between expected and
actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Net investment income
Benefit payments
Administrative expense

$

150,632
15,545
929,241)

(
(

455,111)
162,598
855,238)

$

240,189
1,259,571

(

417,634)
859,252)

(

2018

$

215,095
1,252,635

(

115,804
371,479
828,267)

2017

$

219,440
1,230,769

(
(

378,867)
759,095)

766,873

372,542

222,874

1,126,746

312,247

17,579,134

17,206,592

16,983,718

15,856,972

15,544,725

18,346,007

17,579,134

17,206,592

16,983,718

15,856,972

578,504
-

556,284
-

526,516
-

510,330
-

518,593
-

1,226,151
( 929,241)
(
45,021)

Net change in plan fiduciary net position

243,600
1,276,693

2019

(
(

661,558
855,238)
41,266)

1,023,520
( 859,252)
(
48,514)

1,212,210
( 828,267)
(
37,979)

(
(

771,455
759,095)
36,959)

830,393

321,338

642,270

856,294

493,994

Plan fiduciary net position (beginning)

13,967,151

13,645,813

13,003,543

12,147,249

11,653,255

Plan fiduciary net position (ending)

14,797,544

13,967,151

13,645,813

13,003,543

12,147,249

$ 3,548,463

$ 3,611,983

$ 3,560,779

$ 3,980,175

$ 3,709,723

Net pension liability (ending)
Net position as a percentage of pension liability
Covered payroll

$ 12,862,470

Net pension liability as a percentage of payroll

79.45%

80.66%

$ 11,368,961

79.31%
$ 10,753,002

31.77%

27.59%

33.11%

Information to present a 10-year history is not reasonably obtainable.

See independent auditor’s report.
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76.56%
$ 10,666,168
37.32%

76.61%
$ 10,800,353
34.35%

ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF PENSION PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS
Escambia County Health Care Authority Pension Trust
September 30, 2021, 2020, 2019, 2018, and 2017
__________
2020

2021
Actuarially determined contribution

$

Contributions made in relation to the
actuarially determined contribution
Contribution deficiency
Covered payroll

578,504

$

-

$ 12,862,470

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll

$

526,516

556,284

578,504
$

556,284

2019

$

-

$ 11,368,961

$

526,516
$

-

$ 10,753,002

4.89%

4.50%

2018

4.90%

510,330

2017
$

510,330
$

-

$ 10,666,168

4.78%

518,593

518,593
$

-

$ 10,800,353

4.80%

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:
 Valuation date: Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of October 1, two years prior
to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.
 Actuarial cost method: Entry age normal
 Asset valuation method: Market value
 Inflation: 2.50%
 Salary increases: 3.75% per annum
 Investment rate of return: 7.50%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation.
 Retirement age: Normal retirement age
 Mortality rates: PubG-2010(B) Mortality Table
Information to present a 10-year history is not reasonably obtainable.

See independent auditor’s report.
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ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
ACH Pension Plan
September 30, 2021, 2020, 2019, and 2018
__________
2020

2021
Total pension liability:
Service cost
Interest cost
Differences between expected and
actual experiences
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments

$

(

Net changes in total pension liability
Total pension liability (beginning)
Total pension liability (ending)
Plan fiduciary net position:
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employees
Differences between expected and
actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Net investment income
Benefit payments
Administrative expense

(
(

Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position (beginning)

4,769
223,275

$

6,188
227,792

75,314
272,531)

(
(
(

4,671)
11,282)
289,726)

30,827

(

71,699)

$

(

8,696
232,022

39,415
23,752
257,167)

(

66,760)
250,880)

38,417

(

76,922)

3,354,424

3,431,346

3,351,969

3,321,142

3,392,841

3,354,424

54,735
-

52,073
-

73,933
-

59,172
-

267,546
272,531)
7,850)

(
(

153,616
289,726)
17,940)

203,032
257,167)
17,238)

286,980
250,880)
12,750)

41,900

(

101,977)

(
(

3,168,190

82,522

3,165,629

3,083,107

243,856

1

3,066,213

3,108,113
$

254,929

(
(

2,560

-

-

$

(

6,176
226,241

3,392,841

Adjustment to beginning of year

Net pension liability (ending)

$

2018

3,321,142

3,066,213

Plan fiduciary net position (ending)

2019

-

3,168,190
$

224,651

3,165,629
$

188,795

Net position as a percentage of pension liability

92.72%

92.32%

93.38%

94.37%

Covered payroll

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Net pension liability as a percentage of payroll

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Information to present a 10-year is not reasonably obtainable.

See independent auditor’s report.
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ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF PENSION PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS
ACH Pension Plan
September 30, 2021, 2020, 2019, and 2018
__________
2020

2021
Actuarially determined contribution

$

Contributions made in relation to the
actuarially determined contribution
Contribution deficiency (excess)

54,735

$

$

-

$

52,073

54,735
$

52,073

2019

-

59,172

2018
$

59,172

73,933
$(

14,761)

59,172
$

-

Covered payroll

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:
 Valuation date: Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of October 1, two years prior
to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.
 Actuarial cost method: Entry age normal
 Asset valuation method: Market value
 Inflation: 2.50%
 Salary increases: N/A
 Investment rate of return: 7.00%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation.
 Retirement age: Normal retirement age
 Mortality rates: PubG-2010(B) Mortality Table
Information to present a 10-year history is not reasonably obtainable

See independent auditor’s report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
The Board of Directors
Escambia County Health Care Authority
Brewton, Alabama
We have audited the financial statements of Escambia County Health Care Authority as of and for the
years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, and our report thereon dated August 15, 2022, which
expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, appears on pages 1 through 3. Our
audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The information included in this report on page 63, which is the responsibility of management, is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements.
Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements, and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Albany, Georgia
August 15, 2022
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ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
BOARD MEMBERS AND OFFICIALS (UNAUDITED)
September 30, 2021
__________
Name

Position

Expiration of
Term

A.G. “Bo” Brantley

Board Member

June 2025

Sharon Davidson

Vice Chairman

June 2025

Al Holley

Board Member

June 2023

Keith Horton

Board Member

June 2027

Jim Johnson

Board Member

June 2025

Nancy M. Lowrey

Treasurer

June 2025

Deborah Rowell

Chairman

June 2023

Don Ward

Board Member

June 2023

Delois Wilson

Board Member

June 2027

See independent auditor’s report on supplemental information.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
__________

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
The Board of Directors
Escambia County Health Care Authority
Brewton, Alabama
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
business-type activities and fiduciary activities of Escambia County Health Care Authority as of and
for the year ended September 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated August 15, 2022.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Escambia County
Health Care Authority’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Authority’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Continued
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify certain
deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses
that we consider to be significant deficiencies. [2021-001, 2021-002, and 2021-003]
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Escambia County Health Care Authority’s
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Escambia County Health Care Authority’s Response to Findings
The Authority’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Responses. The Authority’s response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements, and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on it.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Albany, Georgia
August 15, 2022
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ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
September 30, 2021
__________
Significant Deficiency 2021-001 (Repeat Finding 2020-001)
Condition:

During the audit, it was noted that the CFO has access that creates a lack
of segregation of duties in various processes including the financial
reporting, cash and disbursing functions.

Criteria:

To ensure appropriate reporting and physical safeguard of assets, certain
responsibilities such as authorization, recordkeeping, and custody should
be appropriately segregated. In situations where all three elements cannot
be adequately segregated, a robust review process should be implemented.

Cause:

Due to the nature of operations, there are not enough personnel to
adequately staff all functions creating the need for key personnel to perform
tasks outside their normal duties.

Effect:

While no specific misstatements were noted due to segregation issues, the
potential for misappropriation exists when appropriate safeguards are not in
place.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that a review process of system access be performed to
determine which access is necessary to carry out day-to-day activities and
limiting access, where possible. Further, it is recommended that an
additional review process be implemented at the CEO or board level for
areas where segregation is not possible.

Views of responsible
officials and planned
corrective actions:

Due to staffing constraints, the Authority is not able to separate all duties. It
is the policy of the Authority to ensure appropriate reporting and physical
safeguard of assets, certain responsibilities such as authorization,
recordkeeping, and custody should be appropriately segregated.
Segregation of duties has been given to the extent possible. We are
continuing to look at adding additional review processes outside of those
that are currently working in the system to mitigate these risks.

Continued
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ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES, Continued
September 30, 2021
__________
Significant Deficiency 2021-002 (Repeat Finding 2020-002)
Condition:

Cash, inventory, prepaids, capital assets, accrued expenses, as well as
other balance sheet accounts were not reconciled timely to supporting
documentation.

Criteria:

A process should be in place to ensure all balance sheet accounts are
reconciled completely and on a timely basis allowing adequate time for
review by appropriate personnel.

Cause:

Internal controls over reconciliation processes were inadequately staffed
due to lack of personnel.

Effect:

The Authority’s financial statements could be misstated due to recording
errors not being detected in a timely manner.

Recommendation:

All balance sheet accounts on the general ledger should be reconciled to
the appropriate subsidiary ledgers and/or supporting documents and all
variances investigated on a timely basis. This control activity will help
ensure the accurate reporting of the Authority’s financial position and
operations.

Views of responsible
officials and planned
corrective actions:

The Authority is aware that not all reconciliations were performed in a timely
manner due to staffing constraints. Subsequent to year-end, additional staff
were hired to facilitate the timely completion and review of reconciliations.

Continued
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ESCAMBIA COUNTY HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES, Continued
September 30, 2021
__________
Significant Deficiency 2021-003 (Repeat Finding 2020-003)
Condition:

During journal entry testing, it was noted that manual journal entries are not
maintained in an organized manner with proper support outside of the
general ledger system. Due to not having a manual log, the journal entries
are not reviewed and approved by a second person.

Criteria:

A process should be in place to ensure all journal entries are organized,
approved and reviewed with appropriate considerations made to ensure
proper segregation of duties occur.

Cause:

Internal controls over the journal entry process are inadequately designed.

Effect:

Lack of proper organization, review and approval can lead to duplicate or
fraudulent entries causing the financial statements to be misstated.

Recommendation:

We recommend that a master listing be maintained with appropriate support
attached for each entry. In addition, all journal entries should be reviewed
by a second person to alleviate segregation of duties issues.

Views of responsible
officials and planned
corrective actions:

The Authority is aware that not all journal entries are organized in a manner
referencing appropriate supporting information along with the needed
preparer and approver identification. It is the policy of the authority to
ensure appropriate reporting and financial close segregation of duties. We
are continuing to look at adding additional review processes outside of
those that are currently working in the financial close systems to mitigate
these risks.
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